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U.S. Department of 
r rans portation 

Pipeline and Hazardous 
Materials Safety 
Administration 

January 30, 2019 

Return Receipt Requested 
Certified Mail#: 70153010000112671043 

70153010000112671005 
70153010000112671012 

Jason M. Stanek, Chairman 
William Donald Schaefer Tower 
Maryland Public Service Commission 
6 St. Paul Street, 16th Floor 
Baltimore, MD 21202 

Mark J. Belton 
Secretary 
Maryland Department of Natural Resources 
580 Taylor A venue 
Annapolis, MD 21401 

United States 
Environmental Protection Agency 

External Civil Rights Compliance Office 
Office of General Counsel 

In Reply Refer To: 
DOT# 2016-0361 
EPA File Nos. 28R-16-R3, 
29R-16-R3, and 30R-16-R3 

Ben Grumbles 
Secretary 
Maryland Department of the Environment 
1800 Washington Boulevard 
Baltimore, MD 21230 

Dear Chairman Stanek, Secretary Grumbles, and Secretary Belton: 

This letter is to inform you that the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT), Pipeline and 
Hazardous Materials Safety Administration (PHMSA), and the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA), External Civil Rights Compliance Office (ECRCO) is resolving this complaint 
based on the enclosed Informal Resolution Agreement (Agreement) entered into between DOT 
and the Maryland Public Service Commission (PSC) and entered into between EPA and the 
Maryland Department of Environment (MOE) and the Maryland Department of Natural 
Resources (MDNR). On June 14, 2016, DOT and EPA accepted Complaint No. DOT #2016-
0361 and EPA Complaint nos. 28R-16-R3, 29R-16-R3, and 30R-16-R3, which alleged violations 
of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI) and its implementing regulations, including 
Title VI regulations administered by DOT (49 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21) and EPA 
( 40 Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 5 and 7), respectively. Specifically, the issues accepted 
for investigation were: 

1. Whether the process and decision to issue a Certificate of Public Convenience and 
Necessity (CPCN) to Mattawoman Energy, LLC for the construction of a natural gas­
fired power plant in Brandywine, Maryland discriminated on the basis of race, color, or 
national origin, in violation of Title VI; and 
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2. Whether the public engagement process prior to the decision to issue a CPCN 
discriminated on the basis of race, color, or national origin, in violation of Title VI. 

During the course of DOT and EPA's investigation, PSC, MOE, and MDNR agreed to enter into 
an Informal Resolution Agreement in order to resolve this complaint. The enclosed Agreement 
is entered into by the PSC with the DOT and by MOE and MDNR with EPA pursuant to the 
authority granted to DOT and the EPA under the federal nondiscrimination laws, including Title 
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and DOT regulation found at 49 C.F.R., Part 21 and EPA 
regulation at 40 C.F.R. Parts 5 and 7, respectively. It resolves complaint numbers: DOT #2016-
0361; and EPA Complaint nos. 28R-16-R3, 29R-16-R3, and 30R-16-R3 and additional concerns 
identified by DOT and EPA. It is understood that the Agreement does not constitute an 
admission by PSC or a finding by DOT of violations of 40 C.F.R., Part 21 or an admission by 
MDE and MDNR or a finding by EPA of violations of 40 C.F.R. Parts 5 and 7. 

The enclosed Agreement does not affect PSC, MOE, and MDNR's continuing responsibility 
under Title VI or other federal non-discrimination laws, DOT's regulation at 40 C.F.R. Part 21 , 
and EPA' s regulation at 40 C.F.R. Parts 5 and 7, nor does it affect DOT and EPA's investigation 
of any Title VI or other federal civil rights complaints or address any other matter not covered by 
this Agreement. This letter sets forth PHMSA's and ECRCO's disposition of the complaint. 
This letter is not a formal statement of PHMSA's or ECRCO's policy and should not be relied 
upon, cited, or construed as such. 

DOT is committed to working with PSC and EPA is committed to working with MOE and 
MDNR as you implement the provisions of the Agreement. PHMSA and ECRCO appreciate 
PSC, MDE, and MDNR's cooperation in this matter and your efforts to ensure that PSC, MOE, 
and MDNR have in place the appropriate foundational elements of a non-discrimination program 
and the policies and procedures to ensure meaningful access for persons with limited English 
proficiency and persons with disabilities. If you have any questions regarding the Agreement 
between PHSMA and PSC, please feel free to contact Rosanne Goodwill at (202) 366-6580, by 
e-mail at rosanne.goodwill@dot.gov, or U.S. mail at Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety 
Administration, U.S. Department of Transportation, 1200 New Jersey Avenue, S.E., (PH-20, 
£25-340), Washington D.C. 20590. If you have any questions regarding the Agreement between 
EPA and MDE or EPA and MDNR, please contact Lilian Dorka at (202) 564-9649, by e-mail at 
dorka.lilian@epa.2.ov, or U.S. mail at U.S. EPA, Office of General Counsel, External Civil 
Rights Compliance Office (Mail Code 23 I0A), 1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Washington, 
D.C. 20460. 

Sincerely, 

Ridi~~~WujJ 
Rosanne Goodwill, Director 
Office of Civil Rights 
Pipeline and Hazardous Materials 
Safety Administration 
U.S. Department of Transportation 

Lilian S. Dorka, Director 
External Civil Rights Compliance Office 
Office of General Counsel 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 



Enclosure 

Cc: 

Angelia Talbert-Duarte 
Acting Associate General Counsel 
Civil Rights & Finance Law Office 
U.S. EPA Office of General Counsel 

Cecil Rodriques 
Deputy Regional Administrator 
Deputy Civil Rights Official 
U.S. EPA Region 3 
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U.S. Department of 
Transportation 

Pipeline and Hazardous 
Materials Safety 
Administration 

United States 
Environmental Protection Agency 

External Civil Rights Compliance Office 
Office of General Counsel 

INFORMAL RESOLUTION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION PIPELINE AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SAFETY 
ADMINISTRATION AND THE MARYLAND PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION: AND. 
THE U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY. AND THE MARYLAND 
DEPARTMENT OF THE ENVIRONMENT. AND THE MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF 
NATURAL RESOURCES. 

The Informal Resolution Agreement between the U.S. Department or Transportation (-- DOT .. ) 
Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration c ·PHMSA .. ) and the iv1aryland Public 
Service Commission (--rsc·). a recipient ot' PHMSA ·s federal financial assistance. and the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (--EPA .. ). and the Maryland Department of the Environment 
(--MOE .. ). a recipient ofEPA"s federal financial assistance. and the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency and the Maryland Department of Natural Resources ( .. MDNR .. ). a recipient of EPA· s 
federal financial assistance sets forth the terms of the mutual resolution or DOT/PHMSA's and 
EPA"s investigation into the recipient agencies· pem1iuing of the Mattawoman power plant in 
Brandywine. Maryland. pursuant to DOT's regulations at 49 CT.R. Part :21 and EP /\ ·s regulations 
at 40 C.F.R. Part 7. implementing Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. 42 U.S.C. ** 2000d to 
2oood-1 ( .. Title vn. 

I. BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE 

A. Title VI and the federal agencies· implementing regulations prohibit discrimination on 
the basis of race. color. or national origin in any programs or activities receiving federal 
financial assistance. Each recipient agency is a recipient o f lederal financial assistance 
from DOT/PHMSA or EPA and is subject 10 the pro,·isions of Title Vl and either 
DOT" s or EPA· s implementing regulations. 

B. On June 14. 20 16. OOT s Pipel ine and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration 
Office of Civil Rights (--OCR .. ). with DOT s Departmental Office or Civil Rights 
(""DOCR .. ).jointly accepted a complaint with EPA ·s E~temal Ci\'il Rights Compliance 
Office c--ECRCO .. ) tl)at alleged discrimination based on race. color and national origin 
in violation of Title VI. In response to the complaint. DOCR/OCR and ECRCO began 
an investigation of the following issues: 

( I) Whether the process and decision to issue a Certificate or Public Convenience and 
Necessity c--CPCN .. ) to Mattawoman Energy. I.LC. for the construction of a natLLra l 



gas-fired power plant in Brandywine, Maryland discriminated on the basis of race, 
color, or national origin, in violation of Title VI; and 

(2) Whether the public engagement process prior to the decision to issue · a CPCN 
discriminated on the basis of race, color, or national origin, in violation of Title VI. 

C. During the course of the federal agencies' investigation, the recipient agencies agreed 
to enter into an Informal Resolution Agreement ("Agreement") in order to resolve this 
complaint. 

D. This Agreement is entered into voluntarily by the recipient agencies jointly, and by 
PHMSA's OCR and EPA's ECRCO. 

E. It is understood that this Agreement does not constitute an admission by the recipient 
agencies of a violation of, or a finding of compliance or noncompliance by PHMSA 
and/or EPA with, applicable federal non-discrimination laws and regulations. 

F. It is understood that PHMSA and EPA will cease investigation of DOT Complaint 
#2016-0361 and EPA complaints 28R-16-R3, 29R-16-R3, and 30R-16-R3 upon the 
signing of this Agreement and will provide technical assistance to support the recipient 
agencies in the implementation of the commitments contained herein. 

G. The PSC, MDE, and DNR agree to fully implement their specific responsibilities under 
the corresponding sections of this Agreement and the recipient agencies understand 

· that a failure to satisfy any tenn in this agreement may result in the EPA and PHMSA 
re--opening an investigation. 1 

H. The recipient agencies are committed to carrying out their responsibilities in a 
nondiscriminatory manner, consistent with the requirements of Title VI and the other 
federal non-discrimination laws and regulations enforced by PHMSA and EPA. The 
activiiies detailed in this Agreement, which the recipient agencies have voluntarily 
agreed to undertake and implement, are in furtherance ofthi_s commitment. 

Il. APPLICABILITY 

The federal agencies assert jurisdiction over this matter under their Title VI regulations. 
Title VI provides that "no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, 
color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, 
or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal 
financial assistance." 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d et seq. 

The federal agencies represent that they have authority under their Title VI regulations 
to initiate an investigation in this matter to detennine the recipient agencies' 

1 EPA Complaint Number 28R-16-R3 will close upon the signing of this Agreement, as PSC is not a recipient of EPA 
financial assistance. 



compliance with Title VI, to issue findings, and where appropriate, to negotiate and 
secure voluntary compliance. 49 C.F.R. Part 21.11; 40 C.F.R. Part 7.120. 

Ill. DEFINITIONS 

• Affected Communities - refers to the residential individuals, organizations and other 
entities located within a one (1)-mile radius of the proposed facility fence line for an 
urban area, as defined by the United States Census Bureau, and within a three (3)-mile 
radius of the proposed facility fence line for a rural area, as defined by the Census 
Bureau. 

• Qualifying Generating Station - refers to a proposed fossil fuel generation facility over 70 
megawatts (MW) in nameplate capacity that is subject to the CPCN requirements under 
COMAR 20.79.01 et seq. 
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INFORMAL RESOLUTION AGREEMENT 
between the 

MARYLAND PUBLIC SERVICE COM.MISSION, 
and the 

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
PIPELINE AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS SAFETY ADMINISTRATION 

DOT Complaint Number 2016-0361 

I. SPECIFIC COMMITMENTS FROM THE PSC 

A. Community Outreach and Public Participation 

1. PSC is committed to providing an opportunity for meaningful and full public 
participation by communities affected by a CPCN application consistent with 
Title VI and other applicable non-discrimination authorities. This includes 
providing meaningful access to persons with limited English proficiency 
("LEP") and those with disabilities, as described in Section D. below. 

2. GPCN Pre,.Am,lic.ation Process. Within six (6) months of the signing of this 
agreement, PSC will submit to its fonnal rulemaking process a proposed rule 
that modifies the CPCN application requirements under Code of Maryland 
Regulations (COMAR) 20.79.01 to include and implement a pre-application 
process for Qualifying Generating Stations, which shall include the following 
requirements: 

a. Notice to the MaJYland Department of Natural Resources Power Plant 
Research Program {''PPRP"}. The prospective applicant shall notify 
PPRP in writing of the applicant's intent to file a CPCN application to 
construct a Qualifying Generating Station and provide PPRP with 
information (e.g., type, source, location) on the proposed generating 
station no less than 90 days prior to the filing of the application. 

b.. Community Engagement. The prospective applicant shall meaningfully 
offer to engage the participation of the Affected Communities for the 
purpose of educating the Affected Communities concerning the project 
and soliciting their feedback. The prospective applicant shall at 
minimum: 

i. Designate a Community Liaison Officer who will serve as the 
prospective applicant's point of contact for community inquiries 
about the application; 

ii. Identify -awial community members and community 
organizations within the Affected Communities (as the term is 
defined in Section III.) and provide notification of the project 



and any public meeting invitation on the subject to the 
community members and organizations consistent with Section 
A(3) below; 

iii. Hold a minim.um of one (I) public meeting within the county or 
municipal corporation in which any portion of the construction 
of the Qualifying Generating Station is proposed to be located; 
in accordance with the following requirements: 

a. The public meeting must be scheduled at least 60 days 
before the filing of a CPCN application; 

b. In addition to the notification requirements in Section 
A(3), the public meeting notice must be submitted to the 
governing body, and if applicable the executive, of each 
county or municipal corporation of the proposed location 
of the generating station; and 

c. The prospective applicant must provide notification of 
the public meeting(s) by: 

1. Placing an invitation on the applicant's website, 
if any, or on the applicant's parent corporation's 
website; 

2. Placing an invitation on at least two types of 
social media platforms; and 

3. Publishing an advertisement in a newspaper of 
general circulation in the county or municipal 
corporation in which the proposed Qualifying 
Generating Station will be located. 

iv. The prospective applicant shall prepare a Public Engagement 
and Participation Certification Form for New Applications, 
which shall descnoe the applicant's efforts to provide notice to 
and engage the Affected Community and shall include a 
summary discussion of what, if any, actions the applicant has 
agreed to take to address public concem(s) raised at the public 
meeting. 

c. Environmental Justice Screen:2 The prospective applicant shall use the 
U.S. EPA EJSCREEN en:vironmental justice screeniilg tool to i~ntify 
Affected Communities that ~y be.·subject to additional impacts :from a 

2
· S,C Purpose and:Ywo[ EJSCREEN lb~,.mlLMY~Jl~I.KS,:9~1~) . BJSCR1!8N Bqyiyq,mcglal Jgatjoc MIPt!iaa 

IOil Sam;plng Tool EJSCREBN Jeqhnlcal Ih:wnm'Sign 
Auguat 2011 (hUPlJlwww.m 19Yl~l1;{)91dqqnncns•@117 cjsqpcg IQ;hnjcal dqcumglf RIID. 



proposed Qualifying Generating Station. The numerical thresholds for 
identifying sensitive areas susceptible to disparate, adverse impacts as a 
result of permitting certain industrial facilities shall be where the U.S. 
EPA EJSCREEN demographic index is at or more than the 80th 

percentile as compared to the state of Maryland for any smgle census 
block group within a three-mile circular buffer centered at the GlS 
coordinates of the proposed Qualifying Generating Station.3 The 
demographic index is the average of the percentage of the population 
that is minority and the percentage of the population that is low income, 
which is hereby defined as a household income less than or equal to 
twice, or 200 percent of, the federal "poverty level." 

3. CPCN Notification fmprovement.s. Within six (6) months of the signing of this 
agreement, PSC will submit to the formal rulemaldng process a proposed 
modification to the rules governing notification of a filed CPCN application 
under COMAR 20.79.02 to include the foUowing: 

a. For fossil fuel generation facilities subject to the CPCN requirement, 
including those for which a waiver has been denied, the applicant shall 
post at minimum one large sign at the site of the proposed facility that 
is visible from the street(s), subject to applicable local restrictions 
and/or regulations. 

b. For a Qualifying Generating Station, the applicant shall also send a letter 
by postal mail to ell residential and business addresses within a one (1 )­
mile radius of the proposed facility site for an urban area, and within a 
three (3)-mile radius of the proposed facility site for a rural area. The 
letter notification shall include: 

. i. A fact sheet on the filed application, including the case number, 
the applicant's designated Community Liaison Officer (as 
described above) and other relevant information; 

u. The prehearing conference date; 

iii. The deadline for filing petitions to intervene; and 

' Su http.s:/ /www.epa,11DV/eJscrttll/frequont-quHtlonHbout-e]greentqS. Stt https://wWW.epa.goy/tltef/productlon/flles/2017-
09/documcnts/2017 _eJs~_technlcal_document.pdf, p. 26, for what a •percentile" means: 

A percentile In EJSCREEN ~tis us rouahly what percent of the US population lives In a block group that has I lowervalue 
(or ln some cues,, tied value). This mHns that 100 minus the pera,ntlle tells us roughlywllu percent of the US 
population his a higher value. This Is gl!'nel"llly I raa10nable lnterpremlon because for most Indicators there are not 
many exact tics betwttn plaw and not many plllces with mls$lng data. • • • All pl!rcentlles In EJSCREEN are population 
percentiles, meanln1 thtY d!SCtlbe the dlstrbution of blodc croup indicator scor.s acr01S the population. Note tl11t a 
population penzntlle may be slishtly dlffen,nt than the unweighted perc:antflt (the percent of bloclt groups, not people, 
with lower or Ued values), beClluse not ail block groups h;rve the same population size. In prat?Jce they are very similar 
beca1UC very few block groups diverge very much from the a'lllrage in PQpulatlon slza. 



iv. A fact sheet concerning the CPCN process. 

c. The applicant shall file with the PSC at least one picture of each posted 
sign in accordance with Section A.3(a) and, where applicable, a signed 
certification of the notification mailings in accordance with subsection 
3(b), along with a complete list of mailing recipient names and 
addresses. 

4. If any fonnal rulemaking conducted pursuant to Paragraphs I.A.2. and I.A.3., 
above, results in any amendments to provisions of COMAR which are a part of 
the Maryland State Implementation Plan ("SIP"), the PSC will coordinate with 
MDE to ensure that such amended COMAR provisions are submitted to EPA 
for approval into the Maryland SIP. 

5. The PSC will agree to review EPA's Public Participation Guidance found at 71 
FR 14207, 14210 (March 21, 2006) which offers important in.formation 
regarding successful public engagement. PHMSA will also provide appropriate 
technical assistance. 

B. Organization 

1. Within three (3) months of the signing of this agreement, PSC will provide a 
description of the CPCN process on its website and provide links to additional 
informational resources. PHMSA will review the description of the CPCN 
process on the website and provide any comments within 60 days. 

2. Within six (6) months.of the signing of this agreement, PSC shall also propose 
to modify COMAR 20.79.0? and 20.79.03 to-require the applicant to include 
with its CPCN application: 

a. The identity and contact infonnation for the applicant' s designated 
Community Liaison Officer, as described in Section A.2(b )(i); 

b. If applicable, a copy of the applicant's U.S. EPA EJSCREEN report, 
which the applicant shall reference and address in the application; 

c. If applicable, a completed and signed Public Engagement and 
Participation Certification Fonn. The Certification Form shall include 
any supporting documentation, including but not limited to any express 
terms of agreement reached between the applicant and the Affected 
Community (subject to redaction of any confidential information); 

d. Any supporting documentation identifying zoning approvals by the 
local . government/local environmental review board/district, where 
available. 

3. Within three· (3) months of the signing of this agreement. PSC will adopt a 
formal Title VI policy of nondiscrimination, and sign (See Section D. below) 



and comply with its obligations under the Title VI assurances. PHMSA will 
review the formal Title VI policy of nondiscrimination within 60 days of 
receipt 

C. Training 

1. Within one (1) year of the signing of this agreement, PSC will accept 
organization-wide training from PHMSA on compliance with Title VI and other 
non-discrimination authorities for its Commissioners, Public Utility Law 
Judges, Office of General Counsel, Office of Staff Counsel, Office of External 
Relations, Transportation Division, and all Division directors and assistant 
directors. Training should be provided within one year of the effectuation of 
this agreement. Within 30 days of completion of the training documentation 
will be submitted to PHMSA. 

2. PSC will accept the provision of technical assistance from PHMSA on 
meaningful public engagement centered° around the CPCN process. Training 
should be provided within one year of the effectuation of this agreement. Within 
30 days of completion of the training documentation will be submitted to 
PHMSA. 

D. Non-Discrimination Procedural Safeguards 

1. This Agreement recognizes that the PSC is an independent agency that is 
committed to enforcing the open access and non-discriminati.bn policies of the 
State of Maryland and as consistent with federal law. 

2. Notice ofNon-Discrmiination. Within three (3) months of the signing of this 
agreement, PSC will prominently post a Notice of Non-Discrimination in its 
offices, on its website homepage, and, to the extent practicable, the PSC will 
include a Notice of Non-Discrimination in general publications that are 
distributed to the public (e.g., notice for public hearings, entrances to public 
hearings, public outreach materials such as brochures, notices, fact sheets, or 
other information on rights and services, as well as in applications or fonns to 
participate in or access to PSC's programs, processes, or activities). 

3. Grievance Procedures. Within three (3) months of the signing of this 
agreement, PSC will prominently publish on-line on its website homepage, and, 
to the extent practicable, in print, its grievance procedures to proces.s 
discrimination complaints filed under federal non-discrimination statutes, and 
will do so on a continual basis to allow for appropriate, prompt, and impartial 
handling of those discrimination complaints, which may allow PSC to resolve 
issues at the lowest level possible. 

· 4. Designation of Non-Discrimination Coordinator. Within six (6) months of the 
signing of this agreement, PSC will designate· a staff member to serve as its 
non-discrimirurtion coordinator. It is under~od that this individual may 
conduct other duties. PSC will ensure that it has prominently published, in print 



and online, the identity of the current non-discrimination coordinator, along 
with their email address and telephone contact information. 

5. Access fur Persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP). Within six (6) 
months of the signing of this agreement, PSC will develop and implement a 
LEP Plan to ensure meaningful access for limited-English proficient individuals 
to PSC' s programs and activities. 

6. Access for Persons ·with Disabilities. Within six (6) months of the signing of 
this agreement, PSC will develop and implement a policy and procedures for 
providing individuals with disabilities the opportunity for meaningful access 
and opportunity for full participation in PSC's programs and activities. 

ll. GENERAL 

A. In consideration of PSC's implementation of comrnittnents and actions described in 
Section I of this agreement, PHMSA will end its investigation of DOT Complaint 
Number 2016--0361 and not issue a decision containing findings on the merits of the 
complaint 

B. PHM.sA will, upon request, provide technical assistance to PSC regarding any of the 
civil rights obligations previously referenced. 

C. PHMSA will review and provide .feedback about any documentation submitted by PSC 
demonstrating completion of each commitment (e.g., evidence of publication of the 
designation of the Non-Discrimination Coordinator) and will provide an assessment as 
the whether the documentation satisfies the commitment. 

D. PSC will report the completion of each commitment identified under Section I 
consistent with the timcframes in Section I by certified mail to Rosanne Goodwill, Civil 
Rights Director, Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration, U.S. 
Department of Transportation, 1200 New Jersey Ave, SE, (PH-20, E25-340), 
Washington D.C. 20590, within 30 days of the completion by PSC of each 
commitment 

E. PHMSA will monitor the implementation of the committnents in this agreement to 
ensure they are fully implemented. Once the terms of this agreement are satisfied, 
PHMSA will issue a letter documenting closure of its monitoring actions in DOT 
Complaint Number 2016-036 I and closure of the complaint as of the date of that letter. 

ill. COMPUTATION OF TIME AND NOTICE 

A. As used in this agreement, "day" shall mean a calendar day. In computing any period 
of time under this agreement, where the last day would fall on a Saturday, Sunday, or 
holiday (State or Federal), the period shall run until the close of business of the next 
working day. 



B. Service of any documents required by this agreement shall be made personally, by 
certified mail with return receipt requested, or by any reliable commercial delivery 
service that provides written verification of delivery. 

C. Documents submitted by PSC to PHMSA shall be sent to Civil Rights Director, 
Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration, U.S. Department of 
Transportation, 1200 New Jersey Ave, SE, (P~-20, E25-340), Washington D.C. 20590. 

D. Documents submitted by PHMSA to PSC shall be sent to Jason M. Stanek, Chairman, 
Maryland Public Service Commission, William Donald Schaefer Tower, 6 St. Paul St., 
1~ Floor, Baltimore, MD 21202. 

IV. EFFECT OF INFORMAL RESOLUTION AGREEMENT 

A. PSC understands that by signing this agreement, it agrees to provide data and other 
information in a timely manner in accordance with the reporting requirements of this 

. agreement Further, PSC understands that dwing the monitoring of this agreement, if 
necessary, PHMSA may visit PSC, interview staff: and request such additional reports 
or data as necessary for PHMSA to ~tetmine whether PSC bas fulfilled the terms of 
this agreement and is in compliance with DOT regulations implementing the federal 
non-discrimination requirements set forth in 49 C.F .R. Part 21, which were at issue in 
this case. 

B. PSC understands ~at PHMSA will close its monitoring of this agreement when 
PHMSA determines that PSC has fully implemented this agreement and that a failure 
to satisfy any term in this agreement may result in PHMSA re-opening the 
investigation. 

C. If either Party desires to modify any portion of this agreement because of changed 
conditions making performance impractical or impossible, or due to material change to 
PSC' s program or authorities, or for other good cause, the Party seeking a modification 
shall promptly notify the other in writing, setting forth the facts and circumstances 
justifying the proposed modification. Any modification(s) to this agreement shall take 
effect only upon written agreement of the Chairman of PSC and the Civil Rights 
Director of PHMSA. 

D. This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between PSC and PHMSA regarding 
the matters addressed herein. and no other statement, promise, or agreement, made by 
any other person shall be construed to change any commitment or term of this 
agreement, except as specifically agreed to by PSC and PHMSA in accordance with 
the provisions of Section IV. Paragraph C. above. 



E. This agreement does not affect PSC's continuing respom;ibility to comply with Title 
VI or other federal non-discrimination laws and DOT's regulations at 49 C.F.R.. Part 
21, nor does it affect PHMSA 's investigation of any Title VI or other federal civil rights 
complaints or address any other matter not covered by th.is agreement 

F. The effective date of this agreement is the date by which both Parties have signed the 
agreement. This agreement may be signed in counterparts. The Chairman, in his 
capacity as an official of PSC, has the authority to enter into this agreement for purposes 
of carrying out the activities listed in these paragraphs. The PHMSA Civil Rights 
Director has the authority to enter into this agreement 

On behalf of the Maryland Public Service Commission 

asonM. Stanek 
Chainnan 

On behalf of the U.S. Department of Transportation, Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety 
Administration, 

</-~z,.Jf 
(Date) 

On behalf of the U.S .. Department of Transportation, Departmental Office of Civil Rights, 

c:~C /rq ~ 
Charles E. James, Sr., Directol 
Departmental Office of Civil Rights 

1,. 2 7-- 2cJl8 
(Date) 
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INFORMAL RESOLUTION AGRE~T 

MARYLAND DEPART~J;.n ~:\HE ENVIRONMENT, 
and the 

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
EPA. C.omplamtNumber.l9R-l6-R3 

L SPECIFIC MDE COMMITMENTS 

A. These commitments apply to a Qualifying Generating Station. 

I. MOE will make air quality ~nformation publicly available as part of its review 
of a new CPCN application for any Qualifying Generating Station. The 
infonnation will include: 

• A swnmary of the sampling data from MDE'.s air moni~or4tg station{s) 
located closest to the site of a proposed electric generating:urii~. 

• A comparison between the sampiing data and the applicable national 
a,rnQiCl\t air quality standards ~AAQS) (40 C.F.R. Part 70). 

• A, description of how MOE detennines whether the proposed electric 
-generating unit would not cause a violation of any NAAQS for which 
the ~ta,e is in attainment and how the proposed project.meets applicable 
Clean· Air Act requiremen~ in areas for whicli the State is not in 
attainment. · · 

• A descripti_on o"r any pollution control devices proposed to be installed 
and how they meet state or federai' requirements with respect to 
contrqlling emissions of criteria air pollutants. 

2 . . MOE will-identify a COIIUJ!.unity i"esoW'.ce Qfficer'to particip~tc at ~h CPCN 
Applicant commumty educational and outreach meeting associated with the 
receipt of a new CPCN application for a QualifyiJjg Gen~tating Station. At 
each community education and outreach meeting, MDE will: 

• PJ"QVide a·.description of their regulatory auth9rity; 
• provide a description of the required envfronmentaJ assessments 

associated with the CPCN; and · 
• provide a description of the ~nvironmenta}. permitting requirements 

associated with tbe CPCN. 

3. MDE's community ~source officer will work with Affected Communities to 
evaluate any •~.citizen science" monitoring undertaken or proposed to be 
tmdenaken l>y commwiitics or by <;>thers on tbe comm~ties' behalf. MOE will 
pr-0vic;ie a written response to the individual sµbmissions which .describe MD E's 
determinations regarding its information review. 



4. In accordance-with Subpart A, Paragraph l.A.4.i MDE will submit to EPA for 
approval as an amendment to the: Maryland State Implementation Plan any 
changes to COMAR-which arc the result of PS.C formal rulcmaking pursuant to 
S~bpart A., Paragraphs I.A. 2 .and I.A.3. 

-B. Training 

1. MDE will accept the provision of organization-wide training from EPA on 
compliance with Title VI and other non--discrinrination authorities. Training 
should be provided within one year of the effectuation of this agreemenL 

2. MDE will accept the provision of technical assistance from EPA on meaningful 
public engagement with regard to the CPCN process, including the ~tion of 
.Public Engagement Plans (PEPs). Training shotdd be provided within one year 
of the effectuation of this agreement. 

C. Non-Discrimination Procedural Safeguards 

I. This Agreementrecognizes that'MDE has an affirmative obligation to not only 
eliminate discrimination in their organizational processes but to also 
proactively prevent discrimination, including any that may arise from the 
CPCNp~ss. 

2. Notice of Non-Di.scrimination: Within three (3) months of _the signing of this 
.Agreement, MDE. will .prominentfy post its Notice of Non-Discrimination on 
its website homepage, in general pu~lications that are distribut~ to the public 
(e.g., public outreach materials·such as brochures, notices.fact sheets, or other 
infom,iation on rights and services, as well as in applications or fonns to 
participate in or access to MDE's programs, processes, or activities), ·and in 
MDE's offices. 

3. Grievance -Procedures: Within three (3) months of the s1gi11ng of this 
Agreement, MDE will prominently publish in print and· on-line its· grievance 
procedures to process discrimination compliµnts ~led under federal non­
discrimination statutes, and will do so on a continual basis to allow for 
appropriate, Pt:Qmpt.:and it;npartial handling of.those di$Crlmination complaints, 
which may allow MDE to resolve issues at the lowest leyel · pos_sible. 

4.. Designation ofNop-Disc~~on-O>o..i'dinator. Within three (3) months of the 
signing ·of this- Agreement, MDE will designate a lion--discrimination 
coordinator staff position. If necessary, this position··can also conduct other 
duties. MDE will ensure that it has prominently published, i"n print and online, 
the identity of the CWTeQt non.;dlscrimination coordinator, along with bis/her 
email address and telephone contact infonnation. 



5; Access for ·Persons with Limited English. Proficiency (LEP): Within .six (~ 
months of.the signing of this Agreement, M.DE will develofano implement a 
LEP Plan to ensure meaningful access for limited•English proficient individuals 
to MDE's programs and activities. 

6. Access for Persons with ·Disabilities; Within six (6) months of the signing of 
this Agreement, MOE will develop and implement a policy and. procedures for 
providing ipdividuals with disaQilities .the opportunity for meaningful access 
and opp()rtw,1ity for full participation in ~DE~s pJ'9gtamS and activities; 

ll. GENERAL 

A. In consideration of MDE's implementation of commitments and actions described in 
Section I of this Agreement, EPA will end its investigation .of EPA Complaint 
Number 29R.-t 6~R3 .and not issue a decision containing findings on the merits of the 
Complaint. 

B. EPA will, upon-request, provide technical assi$timcelo MDEregarding any of the 
civil rights obligations previously referenced. 

C. EPA will rev.iew and, within 30 days provide feedback; which will include an 
assessment as to whether documentation· submitted to EPA by MOE satisfies the 
particular comritlbncnt for wltich MDE is making die submittal; to MDE in resp()nse 
to .. aJ)y documentation submitted · by MPE dem<>Q.Strating completion of each 
commitment (e:g., evidtjtce of p·u~tication -qf the. designation of the Non• 
Discrit11inatfon Cpordin~or). 

D. MDE- will -report ·the completion of each commitment i<,ientified .under Subpart B, 
Section I consistenfwith the timeframes set forth in Subpart B, S~tion I by certified 
ma,il to Lilian Dorka, Director, EPAExtemai Civil Rights Compliance Qffice (Mail 
Codc23.lOA), 1200 PennsylvaniaAvenue.N:W., Washington D.C.20460, within thirty 
00) days of the completion by MOE ofea~h commitment. 

E. EPA wi.11 ¢oriitor .. the in1plernentatio:i-. oftlieCQmnti~ents in this Agreement to ens.ure 
they are fui}y implemented. · Once the teqns !)f diis Agreement are ·satisfied~ EPA will 
issue a lettei·documenting closure ofits moni~ring a~cins in Complaint Number 29R-
16-R3 and ctosure of the complaint as ofth:e date of that letter. 



ill. {;.Ol\'IPUTATION-OF TIME A.ND NOTICE 

A. As used in this Agreement, "day" shall mean a calendar day. In computing any period 
of time under thi~ Agreement, wh~re the last d!JY wquld fall on a Saturday, Sunday, or 
holiday (State or Federai), the period shall run until the close of business of°the n-ext 
working· day. · 

B. Submission of any documents required by Section JI. D. of this .Agreement shall be 
made personally, by certified mail with return receipt requeste<f. or by any reliable 
commercial delivery service that provides written verification of deli:very. 

C. Documents submitted by MDE to tPA shall be sent to Director, EPA External Civil 
Rights Compliance Office (Mail Code 2310A), 1200 Pennsylv~ia· Avenue N.W., 
Washington D.C. 20460. 

D . . Documents submitted by EPA to MOE shall be sent to Ben Grumbles; Secretary, (or 
any successor) Maryland Department of the Environment, 1800 Washington 
Boulevard, Baltimore, MD 21230. · 

IV. EFFECT OF INFORMAL RESQLUTION AGREEMENT 

\ :, \ I • • .. •\ ~, . · • .\ '" • ;\ ,.- ,. ' , ~. ; •• •._ . . ., • j • •- • . •- • , ~ r ~. ; 

A'-- N'IDE :understands that by signing this Agreemen1, if agrees to provide data and other 
infonnation in a timely manner in accordance with the reporting requirements of this 
Agreement. Further, MDE understands that during the monitoring o·fthis Agreement, 
if necessary, EPA may visit MDE, interview staff, and request such additional reports 
or data as necessary for EPA lo detennine whether MDE has fulfilled the terms of this 
Agreement and is .in compliance with EPA. regulations implementing the federal non• 
discrimination requirements in 40 C.FR. Part 7. 

B. MOE understands that EPA will close its monitoring of this Agreement when EPA 
detenn.ines that MOE has fully implemented this Agreement and t}:lat a failure 10-satisfy 
any ·term.in this Agreement may result in EPA re•opening the investigation. 

C. If either MDE or EPA desire to modify any portion of this Agreement because .of 
changed conditions making perfonnance impractical or impossible. or due to material 
change to MDE's program or authorities, or for other good catise, the Party seeking a 
modification shall promptly notify the other ih writing, setting forth the facts and 
circumstances justifying -the proposed modification. Any modification(s) to this 
Agreement shall take effect only upon written consent of the Secretary ofMDE and.the 
ECRCO DirectorofEPA. · 



D. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between MDE and l~PA regarding 
the matters addressed herein. and no other statement. promise. or agreement. made by 
any other person shall be construed to change any commitment or term of this 
Agreement. except as specifically agreed to by MDE and EPA in m:cordance with the 
pro,·isions of Subpart B. Section IV. Paragraph C aboYe. 

E. This Agreement does not affect MDE"s continuing responsibility to comply with Titk 
VI or other foderal non-discrimination laws and EPA"s regulations nt -HI C.F.R. Pan 7. 
including§ 7.85. nor docs it affect EPA"s investigation or any Title VI or other tedcral 
civil righls complaints or address any other matter not covered by this Agreement. The 
Agreement does not affect MOE" s right to respond to any such EPA in\'cstigntion or 
any defenses Lo such. 

r-. The effective date of this Agreement is the date by which both MOE and EPA have 

signed the Agreement. This Agreement may he signed in counterparts. The Secretary. 
in his capacity as an official of MOE. has the authority to enter into this Agreement for 
the purpose of carrying om MOE"s commitments as set forth in this Agreement. The 
Director of ECRCO has the authority 10 enter into this Agreement. 

On behalf or the !'vlarylnnd I kpartmcnt ,,r the I· m·ir011mc111 

Ren Grumhk-~ 
S~1:rctan 

On behalf of the lJ.S. E,n-ironmental Protection Agency. 

~ 
Lilian S. Dorka. Director 
External Civil Rights Compliance Office 
Office of General Counsel 

l-2/-17 
( Date) 

Cf - t 7-,2018 
( Date) 



Subpart C 



INFORMAL RESOLUTION AGREEMENT 
between the 

MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
and the 

UNITED ST ATES ENVIRONMENT AL PROTECTION AGENCY 
EPA Complaint Number 30R-16-R3 

I. SPECIFIC COMMITMENTS FROM MDNR 

A. Community Outreach and Public Participation 

1. Within three (3) months of the signing of this agreement, MDNR shall adopt a 
policy or procedure that, upon receiving notice of a CPCN application for a 
Qualifying Generating Station, MDNR's Power Plant Research Program will 
identify a community resource officer who will serve as a point of contact for 
members of the public interested in the application. The community resource 
officer can participate at each CPCN Applicant community educational and 
outreach meeting associated with the application and may, but need not, be the 
project manager for the application at issue. 

B. Non-Discrimination Procedural Safeguards 

1. MDNR is committed to eliminate discrimination in its organizational processes 
and to proactively prevent discrimination, including any that may arise from its 
role in the CPCN process. 

2. Notice of Non-Discrimination: Within three (3) months of the signing of this 
agreement, MDNR will prominently post its Notice of Non-Discrimination in 
its offices, on its website homepage, and, to the extent practicable, in general 
publications that are distributed to the public (e.g.; public outreach materials 
such as brochures, notices, fact sheets, or other information on rights and 
services, as well as in applications or forms to participate in or access to 
MDNR' s programs, processes, or activities). 

3. Grievance Procedures: Within three (3) months of the signing of this agreement, 
MDNR will prominently publish in print and on-line its grievance procedures 
to process discrimination complaints filed under federal non-discrimination 
statutes, and will do so on a continual basis to allow for appropriate, prompt, 
and impartial handling of those discrimination complaints, 'which may aJJow 
MDNR to resolve issues at the lowest level possible. 

4. Designation of Non-Discri~in~tion Coordinator: MDNR has designate9 and 
wi1l maintain a designated non-discrimination coordinator. The employee 
holding this position may also have other job functions and duties. MDNR will 
ensure that it has prominently published, in print and online, the identity of the 



current non-discrimination coordinator, along with his/her email address and 
telephone contact infonnation. 

5. Access for Persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP): In January 2011, 
MDNR adopted an internal policy for Access for Persons with Limited English 
Proficiency. MDNR will review and update the LEP Plan to ensure it continues 
to provide meaningful access for limited-English proficient individuals to 
MDNR's programs and activities. 

6. Access for Persons with Disabilities: MDNR maintains an ADA Transition Plan 
that is updated every 3 years. MDNR will implement the FY 19-21 ADA 
Transition Plan to ensure the Department is providing individuals with 
disabilities the opportunity for meaningful access and opportunity for· full 
participation in MDNR' s programs and activities. 

II. GENERAL 

A. In consideration ofMDNR' s implementation of commitments and actions 
described in Section I of this Agreement, EPA will end its investigation of 
Complaint Number 30R-16-R3 and not issue a decision containing findings on the 
merits of the Complaint. 

B. EPA will, upon request, provide technical assistance to MDNR regarding any of 
the civil rights obligations previously referenced. 

C. EPA will review and provide feedback about any documentation submitted by 
MDNR demonstrating completion of each and will provide an assessment as the 
whether the documentation satisfies the commitment. 

D. MDNR will report the completion of each commitment identified under Section I 
consistent with the timeframes in Section I by certified mail to Lilian Dorka, 
Director, EPA External Civil Rights Compliance Office (MaH Code 231 0A), 1200 
Pennsylvania Avenue N.W., Washington D.C. 20460, within 30 days of the 
completion by MDNR of each commitment. 

E. MDNR has completed the implementation of commitments I.B.4, I.B.5, and J.B.6. 
EPA will monitor the implementation of the remaining commitments in this 
Agreement to ensure they are fully implemented. Once the terms of this 
Agreement are satisfied, EPA will issue a letter documenting clqsure of its 
monitoring actions in Complaint Number 30R-16-R3 and closure of the complaint 
as of the date of that letter. 



Ill. COMPUTATION OF TIME AND NOTICE 

A. As used in this Agreement, "day" shall mean a calendar day. In computing any 
period of time under this Agreement, where the last day would fall on a Saturday, 
Sunday, or holiday {State or Federal), the period shall run until the close of 
business of the next working day. 

8. Service of any documents required by this Agreement shall be made personally, 
by certified mail with return receipt requested, or by any reliable commercial 
delivery service that provides written verification of delivery. 

C. Docwnents submitted by MDNR to EPA shall be sent to Director, EPA External 
Civil Rights Compliance Office (Mail Code 23 I 0A), I 200 Pennsylvania A venue 
N.W., Washington D.C. 20460. 

D. Documents submitted by EPA to MDNR shall be sent to Mark Belton, Secretary, 
Maryland Department of Natural Resources, Tawes State Office Building, 580 
Taylor Ave, Annapolis MD 2140 I. 

IV. EFFECT OF INFORMAL RESOLUTION AGREEMENT 

A. MDNR understands that by signing this Agreement, it agrees to provide data and 
other information in a timely manner in accordance with the reporting 
requirements of this Agreement. Further, MDNR understands that during the 
monitoring of this Agreement, if necessary, EPA may visit MDNR, interview 
staff, and request such additional reports or data as necessary for EPA to 
determine whether MDNR has fulfilled the tenns of this Agreement and is in 
compliance with EPA regulations implementing the federal non-discrimination 
requirements in 40 C.FR. Part 7, which were at issue in this case. 

B. MDNR understands that EPA will close its monitoring of this Agreement when 
EPA detennines that MDNR has fully implemented this Agreement and that a 
failure to satisfy any term in this Agreement may result in EPA re-opening the 
investigation. 

C. If either Party desires to modify any portion of this Agreement because of 
changed conditions making perfonnance impractical or impossible, or due to 
material change to MDNR' s program or authorities, or for other good cause, the 
Party seeking a modification shall promptly notify the other in writing, setting 
forth the facts and circumstances justifying the proposed modification. Any 
modification(s) to this Agreement shall take· effect only upon written agreement 
of the Secretary of MDNR and the ECRCO Director of EPA. 

D. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between MDNR and EPA 
regarding the matters addressed herein, and no other statement, promise, or . 
agreement, made by an.y other person shall be construed to change any 



commitment or term of this Agreement, except as specifically agreed to by 
MDNR and EPA in accordance with the provisions of Section IV. Paragraph c 
above. 

E. This Agreement does not affect MDNR 's continuing responsibility to comply 
with Title YI or other federal non-discrimination laws and EPA's regulations at 
40 C.F.R. Part 7. including§ 7.85, nor.docs it affect EPA 's investigation of any 
Title VI or other federal civil rights complaints or address any other matter not 
cover:ed by this Agreement. · 

. F. The effective date of this Agreement is the date by which both Parties have signed 
the Agreement. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts. The Secretary, in 
his capacity as an official of MDNR, has the authority to enter into this 
Agreement for purposes of carrying out the activities listed in these paragraphs. 
The Director of ECRC0 has the authority to enter into this Agreement. 

On behalf of the Maryland Department of Natural Resources 

On behalf of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, 

Lilian S. Dorka, Director 
External Civil Rights Compliance Office 
Office of General Counsel 

i 5 J c,..,...,v"·) ;L o l <\ 
{Date) 

Cf- ;l 4--~/-g' 
(Date) 




